
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRl/\L RELATIONS 
DIVISION OF WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
LEGAL UNIT 
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1700 
Oakland, Cali forn ia 94612 
Tel (5 10) 286 -7 100 Fax (5l0) 286-0687 

November 3, 2017 

Hee Jung Mun 
1746 W. 169th Place, Unit A 
Gardena, CA 9024 7 

EDM UND G. BROWN J R., Governor 

NOTICE OF PROVIDER SUSPENSION - WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

Dear Ms. Mun: 

The Administra tive Director of the Division of Workers' Compensation (DWC) is required by Labor 
Code sections 139.2l(a)(l)(A) and 139.2l(a)(l)(C) to suspend you from participation in the 
California workers' compensation system for one or more of the following reasons: you have been 
convicted of a crime described in Labor Code section 139.2l(a)(l)(A) and/or yo ur license, 
certification, or approval to provide health care services has been surrendered or revoked. Enclosed 
are copies of the documents relied upon by the Administrative Director as the basis for taking this 
action. 

Your suspension will start 30 calendar days after the dale of mailing of this notice, unless you submit 
a written request for a hearing, which wi ll stay the suspension pending the outcome of the hearing. 
Your request must be made within 10 calendar days of the date of mailing of this notice. If you do 
not request a hearing within the 10-day time limit, you wi ll be suspended from participation in the 
California workers' compensation system pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 8, section 
9788.2(b). 

Your request for a hearing must contain: 

• Your current mailing address; 
• The legal and factual reasons as to why you do not believe Labor Code section 139.21(a)(l) 

is applicable to you; and 
• Your original signature or the original signature of your legal representative. 

The scope of the hearing is limited to whether or not Labor Code section 139.21(a)(l ) is applicable 
to you. The Administrative Director is required to suspend you unless you provide proof in the 
hearing that Labor Code section 139.21(a)(l) does not appl y. 

Your original request for a hearing and one copy of the request must be fil ed with the Administrative 
Director. Additionally, you must also serve one copy of the request fo r a hearing on the DWC Legal 
Unit. The addresses for the Administrative Director and the Legal Unit·are: 
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Hee Jung Mun 
November 3, 2017 

Hearing Request 
Administrative Director 
Division of Workers' Compensation 
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1800 
Oakland, California 94612 

and 

Hearing Request 
Legal Unit, Division of Workers' Compensation 
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1800 
Oakland, Californ ia 94612 

The original and all copies of the request for hearing must have a proof of service attached. A 
sample proof of service, contain ing all necessary elements, can be found on the DWC website at 
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dwc/fo rms.html , under the category "Court Forms," and then "Proof of 
Service." The Administrative Director is requi red to hold your hearing within 30 days of the receipt 
of your written request. The hearing will be conducted by a hearing officer appointed by the 
Adm inistrative Director. You will be notified shortl y after the receipt of your request of the date and 
time of the hearing. 

For more information about the suspension procedure, please refer to Provider Suspension 
Regulations, California Code of Regulations, title 8, sections 9788.1 - 9788.4, which can be found 
on the DWC website at http://www.di r.ca.gov/dwc/DWCPropRegs/Provider-Suspension­
Procedure/Clean- Vers ion/Text-of-Regu lations.pdf. 

Ge ge Parisotto 
Administrative Director 
Division of Workers' Compensation 

Encls: 
-In fo rmation in United States of America v. Hee Jung Mun, aka "Angela Mltn " (Case No. CR-11 -01169), 
Un ited States District Court, Central District of California 
-Plea Agreement for Defendant Hee Jung Mun in United Sla tes of America v. Hee Jung Mun, aka "Angela 
Mlln " (Case No. CR-11-01169), Uni ted States District Court, Central District of Californi a 
-Criminal Minutes - - Change of Plea in United States of America v. Hee Jung Mun, aka "Angela Mun " (Case 
No. CR-11-01169), United States District Court, Central District of Californi a 
-Judgment and Probation/Co mmitment Order in United States of America v. Hee Jung Mun, aka "Angela 
Mun " (Case Nu. CR-11-011 69), Uni ted States District Court , Central District of Cali forni a 
-Default Decision and Order - In the Matter of the Accusation Against Hee Jung Mun (Case No. 2016-423), 
Before the Board of Registered Nursi ng, Department of Consumer Affairs, Slate of Cali fornia, with 
accompan ying Accusation 
-Declaration of Socorro Tongco in Support of Not ice of Provider Suspension 
-Proof or Service 
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ON:r;TED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

.tliJL.QR.MAl.tQ:lll 

[18 u.s.c. § J.347: Health Care 
Fraud] 

f!EE JONG MUN, ) 
.•. · ,,, 

.~·· 
.I! 

.,..!'" 

A. 

aka "Angela Mun," ) 
) 

Defendant. ) 

The United States Attorney charges: 

!...~ODUCTORX ALLEGATXoma 

At all times relevant to this Information: 

The pefendant 

Defendant HEE JUNG MO:N, also lmown as "Angela Mun• 

23 ("defendant Mmil"), owned Qreatcar.e Home Health, Inc. 

24 · ( "Greatcare") , a Mecj:icare provider. 

25 2. Defendant i\1UN was a Registered liJu:r.se ("RN") who 

26 ·purported to provide :J.n-home skilled nm:sing services· to 

27 Mo9dicare patients for Greatcax·e and. who managed otl1E1r Greatcare 

28 . employees and cp~schemers. 

i!illl -r-
lll11 
iQlJ) 
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1 3, Between on or about May l, 2ooa, and on or about April 

2 JO, 2011, Medica:t·e paid appro:idmately $5, J.44, 2'77 to Greatcare 

3 for .claims relating .to homa heal t:.h 111<u:vices. 

4 l'h!.il Mi<:l;l.g9re Prog~ 

S 4. ·Medicare was a federal health care benefit program, 

6 affecting commerce, that provided benefits to individuals who 

7 were over the age of 65 or disabled. Medicare was administered 

8 by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, a fedfi!ral 

!l agency under the United States Department of Health and Muman 

10 Services . 

11 5. Individuals who qualified for Medicare benefits wer& 

12 referred to as "beneficiaries" a.nd, we:re issued Medicare 

13 identification cards with unique Real th Insurance Claim Numbers, 

14 (i • Persons and entities that provided medical services 

15 that were reimbursed by Medicare were called Medicare 

16 "providers.• 

17 'I . To obtain payment from Medicare, a home health agency 

18 first bad to apply for and obtain a provider, number. By signing 

19 the ;prov.ider application, the home health agency agreed to abide 

20 ·by Medicare :rules and regulations, including the Anti-IUckbacl~ 

21 Statute (42 u.s.c. fi l320a-7b(b)), which, lilmong other things, 

22 ·prohibits the payment of klckbaoks or :bl:'ibes fol:' t:he refe.rral of 

23 Medicare beneficiaries for. any item or service for which payment 

24 may he ma.de by the Medicare program. 

25 8. Medicare re:l.mburaed providers for certain types of 

26 medically necessary treatment, including home health services 

27 provided by qualified home health agencies. 

28 9. Med;l.cii!.re coverage for home heal.th service!l was limited 

2 



" 

( 

Case 2:11-cr-01169-DDP Document 1 Filed 12/0B/11 Page 3 of 7 Page ID #:3 

I to aituationiu in which specified qi.n1.lifying conditiQns were met. 

2 These conditions included the following; 

3 a. The Medicare beneficiary was confined to the home 

4 and did not have a wil+ing care~siver to assist him or her1 

5 b. 'l'he beneficiary needed akilied nursing aexvices or 

6 physical or occupational therapy services; 

7 c, The beneficia1y WV.I! i.mder the care of a qualified 

8 physician who established a written Pl.an of Care for the 

9 benefioia:i..-y, signed by the physician and an RN (o:i: by a 

10 therapist if only therapy -services were provided) from tl1e home 

11 heal. th agency; 

12 d. Skilled nursing seX"Vic.es were provided by ol:' under 

13 the supa:rv:!.sion of an RN in accordance with the plan of care; 

14 . and 

15 a. '!'he skilled nurl!ling serviees or physical or 

16 occupatiorral therapy were medically necessary. 

17 l.O. To determine the proper level of care for a particular 

Ul banefioia:ry and the amount of payment, Medicare required home 

19 health agencies to perform an initial assessment of the 

20 patient's current heal.th and living conditions, using' a tool 

21 called the Outcome •md Assealillllent Information Set ("OASIS") • 

22 l'.L Medicare :i:eqilired the initial assessment and OASIS 

23 fa.rm to be completed by a.n RN or a qua.lj.fied therapist. 

24 12. Medicare also required a home health agency to 

25 · maintain a. clinical. record of service;s provided to each · 

26 beneficia:i:y, including signed and dated clinical and progrel!ls 

27 . notes record:i.ng each homa visit • 

.28 13. M(!dicare paid home health agenciea baaed on a payment 
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system under which Medicare paid home health agencies for each 

sixty-day episode of services. Th~ amount of the payment was 

based primarily on the· severity of the beneficiary's health 

condition and care needs as represented by the OASIS data. 

El , l!l:llL:lCliEME TO DJjllj'RAIJD 

to 

14. Beginning on or about May l, 2000, and continuing to 

on or about March 2, 2011, in.Los .l\.ngeles county, within the 

central District of. California, and elsewhere, defendant MON, 

together with others known and unkno~n.to the Vnited States 

Atto:rney, knowingly, willfully, and wit:h intent to def.raud, 

executed and attempted to execute a saheme a.nd artifice: <ai 

defraud a health care benefit program, .namely Medicare, as to 

ma:terial matters in connm.cition with the delivery of ·and ,Paymemt 

for health care benefits, items, and sel:'vioes; and (b) to obtain 

money from Medicare by means of material false and fraudulent 

pretenses and :r:'epreaentations and the concealment of material 

facts in connection with the delivery of and payment for health 

care benefits, items, and services. 

15. The.scheme operated, in sul:lstance, as follows: 

a. Defendant MON formed Gre.atoare and appli~d for 

and.obtained a Medicare pro'll':i.der number fol:' Greatoare. 

b. D~fendant MUN paid individuals ("marketers") to 

recruit Medicare beneficiaries for Greatoare. These payments 

ranged.from $400 to $600 for eaoh episode of home health 

services that Greatcare was able. to bill to Med:l.care. 

c. Defendant MUN also pa.id doctors between $100 and 

$300 in exchange fo:i:- referrals of Medicare bene:r:icd.a:d.es to· 

Greatoare. 
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d. •rhe marketers and doctor1!J :i:·ec:ruited and referred 

Medicare beneficiaries even though those beneficiaries did not 

need skilled nursing or therapy services. 

e. Additionally, defendant MON paid Meda.care 

beneficiaries approximately $300 to induce them to mign up for 

home health lifervices from Greatca:i:·e. GreatciilXe enrol.led these 

beneficiariea even though they did not need lilldlled nu;t:aing or 

the:r.apy services. 

f. Defendant Ml.TN concealed her payments to these. 

ll\lJlX'klilters, doctors,, and Medicare beneficia:r.ies by making_ those 

payments in cash or through checks from her personal accounts, 

rather than Greatca.:r.e's business accounts. 

g. Defendant MUN hired individuals who were licensed 

to provide nursing or th!!rapy services to asisit;1t her in 

1:5 . preparing fraudulent docum•mts that pu:rport:ed to support 

16 Greatcare's prPvision of home health se:i:-vicea to Medicare 

17 beneficiaries. ln pa:i:·ticul;;i,r, defendOUlt MUN and these other 

18 licensed employees acting at defendant MON' a instructiont 

19 i. Prepared false OASIS forms for Medicare 

20 beneficd.aries receivillg home health services f:roin Greatca:re, 

21 malting :tt appear as though the bene.fici<!ries' medical cond:l.t:f.on 

22 and l.ack of wil.ling caregivl!!:t'l!i made .home health services 

23 medicall.y .necessary, when in fact they were not; 

Z4 ii. Prepared OASIS forms that J.j,sted false or 

25 misleading diagnoseB fol:' the bel'1efic:ia1-ies {im::J.uding' diagnoses 
" 

26 that made th111 benef.iciariet1' conditions seem more severe than 

27 they in f:act were); and 

28 iii. Prepared_ sk:l.J.led nursing notes containing 

.5 
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falsified information regarding the beneficiaries' conditiomi 

1u14 falsely rep:t·esented that patients had been visited by 

.defendant MUN or other licensed employees, wl1en in fact they had 

not. 

h. Defendant MW also hired individuals who sh'!I knew 

were .not licensed to p:t"ovide nursing or therapy services in 

California. Defendant MUN instructed these unlicensed 

individuais to visit Medicare beneficiaries and perform services 

. for them, k110w:l.ng that the unl:l..censed individuals were not 

qualified to perform skilled i1url'!in9 ae:t"',l'ices or physical 

therapy services and sometimes peJ.•formad. service/ii different from 

those cl.aimed to Medicare, including massages, for the 

beneficiaries. Defendant MUN then signed and directed licensed 

Greatcare employees to sign the skilled nursing notes as if the 

11.censed employees had performed the sarvicas, · 

i. Defendant MT.IN maintained fraudulent documentation 

at Graatcare, including the OASIS ·forms and skilled nursing 

not.as, that purporte.d to support the home health claims ·for 

which G:i;eatcara billed Medicare. 

j. Defendant MUN caused Greatcare to submit clail\ls 

to Medica:r.-e fc>r home health services purportedly provided t:o 

. Medicare beneficiaries who were 11.ot c:onfii1ed to their homes or 

otherw:!.se did not qual:l.f.y for or need home health services, who 

:rece:l.ved services from unlicensed individuals, and/o:r who did . 

not receive the services for which Medica:i:·e was billed. 

· R. Medicare paid Greatcare approximately $5,144,277 

for these false and fraudulent claims for home health services 

between May 1, 2008, and April 30, 20:1.1. 

6 
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l c. EXEC:tl'l'!ON Ql!' THE scm:w~ TO P!l1ll'lll\,tll2 

2 l.6. On or about March 1, .2011, in :r..os Angeles County, 

3 . within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

4 
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defendant MUN, t,ogether with others known and unknown to the 

Un~.ted states Attorney, :for the purpose of axecut:l.ng the scheme 

to defraud described above, knowingly and willfully suhm~.tted 

and caused to be submitted to Medicare a false and fraudulent 

claim (claim number 21106100396302CAR) tor. beneficiary s.a., for 

which Medicare paid Oreatcare approximately $2,700. 

ANDR~ llIROTTE JR. 
United States Attorney ·~·-

~9. 0~ 
ROBERT El. DUGDALE . 
Assistant United Stat.ea Attorney 
Chief, Criminal DivisiO•l 

l'JEONG-SOO KIM 
Alilaistant United States Attorney 
Chief, Major Fra,ucla seotion 

CONSUELO S • WOODHlSAP . 
Assistant United States .i\.ttorney 
Deputy Chief, Major Frauds Section 

KRISTEJ.if A. WILLIAMS 
Assistant united States Attorney 
Majol:' Fr.auda Section 

'I 
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l ANDRE BIROTTE JR. 

2 

3 

United States Attorney 
ROBERT E. DUGDALE 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Chief, Criminal Division 
KRISTEN A. WILLIAMS {Cal. State Bar No.: 263594) 

4 Assistant United States Attorney 

5 

7 

8 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Major Frauds Section 
llOO united States Courthouse 
312 North Spring Street 
Loa Angeles, California 90012 
Telephone: (213) 894-0526 
Facsimile: (213) 894-6269 
E-mail: Kristen.Williama@uadoj.gov 

Attorneys for Plaintiff . 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COl'..lRT 

J;llaintiff, 

v. 

HEE JUNG MUN, 
aka uAngela Mun," 

Defendant. 

20 l. This constitutes the··plea agreement between 1!EE JUNG 

21 MUN, also known as "Angela Mun" ("defendant") and the United 

22 States Attorney's Office for the Central District of California 

23 ("the USAO") in the investigation of health care fraud in 

24 violation of Title 18, united States Code, section 1347. This 

25 agreement is limited to the USAO and cannot bind any other 

26 federal, state, local, or foreign prosecuting, enforcement, 

27 administrative, or regulatory authorities. 

28 
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1 .pEFENP.1\NT'S OBLI!.?ATIONS 

2 2. Defendant agrees to: 

3 a) Give up the right to indictment by a grand jury and, 

4 at the earliest opportunity requested by the USAO and provided by 

5 the Court, appear and p.;Lead guilty to a single-count information 

6 in the form attached to this agreement as E'.Khibit A or a 

7 substantially similar form. 

a b) Not contest facts agreed to in this agreement. 

9 c) Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing 

10 contained in this agreement. 

11 dl Appear for all court appearances, surrender as 

12 ordered for service of sentence, obey all conditions of any bond, 

.13 and obey any other ongoing. court order in this matter. 

14 e) Not commit any crime;· however, offenses that would 

15 be excluded for sentencing purposes under united States 

16 sentencing Guidelines ( "U .. s. s. G." or "Sentencing Guidelines") 

17 § 4A1.2(c) are not within the scope of this agreement. 

18 f) Be truthful at all times with Pretrial Services, the 

19 tJnited States Probation Office, and the Court. 

20 g) Pay the applicable special assessment[s] at or 

21 before the time of sentencing unless defendant lacks the ability 

22 to pay and submits a completed financial statement (form OBD-500) 

23 to the USAO prior to sentencing. 

24 h) Not seek the discharge of any restitution 

25 obligation, in whole or in part, in any present or future 

26 bankruptcy proceeding. 

27 i) Allow funds previously seized in connection with 

28 
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this matter in the amount of $·1,298,407.17 to be applied by the 

Court to i;>ay, in order of application, any restitution, special 

assessments, criminal fines, and costs that defendant is required 

to pay, and execute papers as necessary to accomplish this 

application. 

6 3. Defendant further agrees: 

7 a} Truthfully to disclose to law enforcement officials, 

8 at a date and time to be set by the OSAO, the location of, 

9 defendant's ownership interest in, and all other information 

10 known to defendant about, all monies, properties, and/or assets 

ll of any kind, derived from or acquired as a result of, or used to 

12 facilitate the commission of, defendant's illegal activities, and 

13 to forfeit all right, title, and interest in and to such items, 

14 specifically including all right, title, and interest in and to 

lS all property and assets, including $1,298,407.17 seized by law 

16 enforcement officials on or about March 2, 2011, which defendant 

17 admits constitute the proceeds of defendant's illegal activity in 

18 violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347. 

19 bl To the Court's entry of an order of forfeiture at or 

20 before sentencing with respect to these assets and to the 

21 forfeiture of the assets. 

22 c} To take whatever steps are necessary to pass to the 

23 United States clear title to the assets described above, 

24 including, without limitation, the execution of a consent decree 

25 of forfeiture and the completing of any other legal documents 

26 required for the transfer of title to the United States. 

27 d) Not to contest any administrative forfeiture 

28 proceedings or civil judicial proceedings commenced against these 

3 
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1 properties pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Sections 

2 981 (a) (1) (A), (C) , (b) and 984. 

3 e) Not to assist any other individual in any effort 

4 falsely to contest the forfeiture of the assets described above. 

s f) Not to claim that reasonable cause to seize the 

6 assets was lacking. 

7 g) To prevent the transfer, sale, destruction, or loss 

8 of any and all assets described above to the extent defendant has 

9 the ability to do so. 

10 hJ To fill out and deliver to the USAO a completed 

11 financial statement listing defendant's assets on a form provided 

12 by the USAO. 

13 4. Defendant further agrees to cooperate fully with the 

14 USAO, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, and Department of 

15 Health and Human services - Office of the Inspector General, and, 

16 as directed by the USAO, any other federal, state, local, or 

17 foreign prosecuting, enforcement, administrative, or regulatory 

18 authority. This cooperation requires defendant to: 

19 a) Respond truthfully and completely to all questions 

20 that may be put to'defendant, whether in interviews, before a 

21 grand jury, or at any trial or other court proceeding. 

22 b) httend all meetings, grand jury sessions, trials 

23 or other proceedings at which defendant•s presence is requested 

24 by the USAO or compelled by subpoena or court order. 

25 c) Produce voluntarily all documents, records, or 

26 other tangible evidence relating to matters about which the USAO, 

27 or its designee, inquires. 

28 5. For purposes of this agreement: (l) "Cooperation 

4 
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l Information" shall mean any statements ma.de, or documents, 

2 records, tangible evidence, or other information provided, by 

3 defendant pursuant to defendant's cooperation under this 

4 agreement; and (2) ":!?lea Information" shall mean any statements 

s made by defendant, under oath, at the guilty plea hearing and the 

6 agreed to factual basis statement in this agreement. 

7 THE USAQ'S QBL::tGATIONS 

8 6. The USAO agrees to: 

9 a) Not contest.facts agreed to in this agreement. 

10 b) Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing 

ll contained in this agreement. 

12 c) At the time of sentencing, provided that defendant 

13 demonstrates an acceptance of responsibility for the offense up 

14 to and including the time of sentencing, recommend a two-level 

15 reduction in the applicable Sentencing Guidelines offense level, 

16 pursuant to u.s.s.G. § 3El.1, and recommend and, if necessary, 

17 move for an additional one-level reduction if available under 

18 that section. 

19 7. The USAO further agrees: 

20 al Not to offer as evidence in its case-in-chief in 

21 the above-captioned case or any other criminal prosecution that 

22 may be brought against defendant by the USAO, or in connection 

23 with any sentencing proceeding in any criminal case that may be 

24 brought against defendant by the USAO, any Cooperation 

25 Information. Defendant agrees, however, that the USAO may use 

26 both Cooperation Information and !?lea Information: (1) to obtain 

27 and pursue leads to other evidence, which evidence may be used 

28 for any purpose, including any criminal prosecution of defendant; 

5 
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1 {2) to cross~examine defendant should defendant testify, or to 

2 rebut any evidence offered, or argument or representation made, 

3 by defendant, defendant's counsel, or a witness called by 

4 defendant in any trial, sentencing hearing, or other court 

5 proceeding; and (3) in any criminal prosecution of defendant for 

6 false statement, obstruction pf justice, or perjury. 

7 b) Not to use Cooperation Information against 

a defendant at sentencing for the purpose of determining the 

9 applicable guideline range, including the appropriateness of an 

10 upward departure, or the sentence to be imposed, and to recommend 

11 to the Court that Cooperation Information not be used in 

12 determining the applicable guideline range or the sentence to be 

13 imposed. Defendant understands, however, that Cooperation 

14 Information will be disclosed to the probation office and the 

15 court, and that the Court may use Cooperation Information for the 

16 purposes set forth in u. s. s. G § 1Bl. B {b) and for determining the 

17 sentence to be imposed. 

lB c) In connection .with defendant's sentencing, to 

19 bring to the Court's attention the nature and extent of 

20 defendant's cooperation. 

21 d) If the USAO·determinep, in its exclusive judgment, 

22 that defendant has both complied with defendant's obligations 

23 under paragraphs 2, 3, and 4 above and provided substantial 

24 assistance to law enforcement in the prosecution or investigation 

25 of another ("substantial assistance"), to move the Court pursuant 

26 to u.s.s.G. § 5Kl.l to fix an offense level and corresponding 

27 guideline range below that othe:rwise dictated by the sentencing 

28 guidelines, and to recommend a term of imprisonment within this 

6 
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reduced range. 

DEFENDANT'S QNPERSTANQINGli! &EGAR.DING CQOPERATION 

a. Defendant understands the following1 

a) Any knowingly false or misleading statement by 

defendant will subject defendant to prosecution for false 

statement, obstruction of justice, and perjury and will 

constitute a breach by defendant of this agreement. 

b) Nothing in this agreement requires the USAO or any 

other prosecuting, enforcement, administrative, or regulatory 

authority to accept any cooperation or assistance that defendant 

may offer, or to use it in any particular way. 

c) ·Defendant cannot withdraw defendant's guilty plea 

if the USAO does not make a motion pursuant to u.s.s.G. § 5Kl.l 

for a reduced guideline range or if the USAO makes such a motion 

and the Court does not grant it or if the Court grants such a 

16 USAO motion but elects to sentence above the reduced range. 

17 dl At this time the USAO makes no agreement or 

18 representation as to whether any cooperation that defendant has 

19 provided or intends to.provide constitutes or will constitute 

20 .substantial assistance. The decision whether defendant has 

21 provided substantial assistance will rest solely within the 

22 exclusive judgment of the USAO. 

23 e) The USAO's determination whether defendant has 

24 provided substantial assistance will not depend in any way on 

25 whether the government prevails at any trial or court hearing in 

26 which defendant testifies or in which the government otherwise 

27 presents information resulting from defendant's cooperation. 

28 

7 
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l N~TPRE OF THEOFFEN'SE 

2 9. Defendant understands that for defendant to be guilty of 

3 the crime charged in the information's single count (violation of 

4 Title 18, United States Code, Section i347), the following must 

5 be true: (1) defendant knowingly and willfully devised or 

6 participated in a scheme to defraud a health care benefit 

7 program; (2) the statements made or facts omitted as part of the 

8 scheme were material; (3) defendant acted with intent to defraud; 

9 and (4) the scheme involved the delivery of or payment for health 

lo care benefits, items, or services. Defendant admits that 

11 defendant is, in fact, guilty of this offense as described in 

12 information's single count. 

13 PENALTIES AND EESTI'l'UTION 

14 10. Defendant understands that the statutory maximum 

15 sentence that the court can impose for a violation of Title 18, 

16 United States Code, Section 1347, ie 10 years imprisonment; a 3-

17 year period of supervised release; a fine of $250,000 or twice 

18 the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, 

19 whichever is greatest; and a mandatory special assessment of 

20 $100. 

21 11. Defendant understands that defendant will be required 

22 to pay.full restitution to the victim(s) of the offense. 

23 Defendant agrees that, in return for the USAO's compliance with 

24 its obligations under this agreement, the amount of restitution 

25 is not restricted to the 'amounts alleged·in-the count to which 

26 defendant is pleading guilty and may include losses arising from 

27 all relevant conduct in connection with that count. The parties 

28 currently believe that the applicable amount of restitution is 

8 
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l approximately $5,144,277.54, hut recognize and agree that· this 

2 amount could change based on facts that come to the attention of 

3 the parties prior to sentencing. 

4 12.· Defendant understands that supervised release is a 

s pericrd of time following imprisonment during which defendant will. 

6 he subject to various restrictions and requirements. De.fendant 

7 understands that if defendant violates one or more of the 

8 conditions of any supervised release imposed, defendant may he 

.9 returned to prison for all or part of the term of supervised 

10 release authorized.by statute for the offens~ that resulted in 
' 11 'the term of supervised release, which could result in defendant 

12 serving a total term of imprisonment greater than the statutory 

13 maximum stated above. 

14 13. Defendant understands· that, by pleading guilty, 

15 defendant may be giving up valuable government benefits and 

16 valuable civic rights, such as the right to vote, the right to 

17 possess a firearm, the right to hold office, and the right to 

18 serve on a jury. Defendant understands that once the court 

1.9 accepts defendant's guilty plea, it· will be a federal felony for 

20 defendant to possess a firearm or ammunition. Defendant 

21 understands that the conviction in this case may also subject 

22 defendant to·various other collateral consequences, including'but 

23 not limited to mandatory exclusion from federal health care 

24 benefit programs for a minimum of five years, suspension or 

25 revocation of a professional license, and revocation of 

26 probation, parole, or supervised release in another case. 

27 Defendant understands that unanticipated collateral consequences 

28 will not serve as grounds to withdraw defendant's guilty plea. 

9 
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l 14. Defendant understands that, if defendant is not a 

2 U~ited states citizen, the felony conviction in this case may 

3 subject defendant to removal, also known as deportation, which 

4 may, under some circumstances, be mandatory. The court cannot, 

5 and defendant's attorney also may not be able to, advise 

6 defendant fully regarding the immigration consequences of the 

7 felony conviction in this case. Defendant understands that 

a unexpected immigration consequences will not serve as grounds to 

9 withdraw defendant's guilty plea. 

10 FACTUAL BbSIS 

11 15. Defendant and the USAO agree to the statement of facts 

12 provided below. Defendant and the USAO agree that this statement 

13 of facts is sufficient to support a plea of guilty to the charge 

14 described in this agreement and to establish the Sentencing 

15 Guidelines factors set forth in paragraph 17 below but is not 

16 meant to be a complete recitation of all facts relevant to the 

17 underlying criminal conduct or all facts known to either party 

18 that relate to that conduct. 

19 Background 

20 From in or around May 2008 through in or around March 2011, 

21 defendant, a registered nurse ("RN"), was the owner and operator 

22 of a home health agency called Greatcare Home Health, Inc. 

23 {"Greatcare"). During that time period, defendant enrolled 

24 Greatcare as a provider with Medicare, a federal health care 

25 benefit program that provides reimbursement for medically 

26 necessary services to persons age sixty-five years and older and 

27 to certain disabled persons. Greatcare purported to provide home 

2a health services, including skilled nursing services and physical 

10 
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l therapy treatments1 to Medicare beneficiaries. 

2 During ·the time period defendant owned and operated· 

3 Greatcare, defendant knew the Medicare reqUirements for home 

4 health services, including.the reqUirements that (a) the patient 

s be confined to a home and lack a willing caregiver, (b) the 

6 patient has a medical need for the services, (o) the services 

7 must be provided by persons licensed within the state in which 

8 they are practicing to provide those services, (d) and the home 

9 health agency must maintain signed and dated clinical notes for 

10 each home visit that accurately detail the services provides on 

11 those visits. Defenaant also knew that it was illegal to pay or 

12 receive kickbacks for the referral of patients for health 

13 services paid for by Medicare. 

14 The Fraudulent Sgheme 

15 Beginning in or around May 2008 and continuing through on or 

16 about March 2, 2011, in Los Angeles County, within the Central 

17 District of California, defendant, together with others working 

18 at Greatcare, engaged in a scheme to defraud Medicare in which 

19 they (a) paid illegal kickbacks to doctors and marketers in 

20 exchange for their referrals of Medicare patients to Greatcare, 

21 (b) paid illegal kickbacks to patients to induce them to sign up 

22 for home health services, (c} billed Medicare for patients who 

23 were not homebound or otherwise did not qUalify for home health 

24 services, (d) billed Medicare for services that were provided by 

25 unlicensed nurses, (e) used false and exaggerated patient 

2G diagnoses to generate higher Medicare :reimbursement, and (f) 

27 created false medical records to support false claims Greatoare 

28 submitted to Medicare. 

11 
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l Defendant obtained Medicare beneficiaries for Greatcare by 

2 paying doctors and marketers anywhere from $100 to $300 per 60-

3 day episode of service for each Medicare beneficiary they 

4 referred to Greatcare. Defendant also obtained Medicare 

5 benllficiary information by paying patients approximately $300 to 

6 induce them to sign up with Greatcare for home health services. 

7 Defendant paid the majority of these marketers, doctors, and 

S patients in cash or in checks from her personal bank account in 

9 an effort to conceal the illegal kickbacks. 

10 As defendant knew, many of those Medicare beneficiaries 

11 referred by the marketers and doctors and paid by defendant did 

12 not need skilled nursing or physical therapy services. Defendant 

13 hired employees who were licensed to provide nursing and physical 

14 therapy services in order to fill out and sign off on fraudulent 

15 outcome and Assessment Information Set ("OASIS") forms for 

16 Greatcare patients. -The OASIS form is part of an initial 

17 assessment conducted by a registered nurse for all Medicare 

18 patients receiving home health services and is used in 

19 determining Medicare reimbursement. The severity of the 

20 beneficiary's health condition and care needs as indicated on the 

21 OASIS form affected the level of Medicare reimbursement to the 

22 provider. On Greatcare's OASIS forms, defendant and Greatcare 

23 employees acting at defendant's instruction falsely claimed that 

24 patients were unable or unwilling to administer their own 

25 medication and required skilled nursing services. on those OASIS 

26' forms, defendant and her co-schemers also entered diagnoses that 

27 defendant knew the patients did not have and which were different 

29 from the diagnoses reflected on the doctors' orders for home 

12 
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l health services. The false statements made by defendant and 

2 other Greatcare employees at her instruction were material, in 

3 that Medicare relied upon the information from the OASIS forms 

4 about the severity of the patient's condition and necessity for 

5 home health services in determining Greatcare's reimbursement. 

6 Though defendant assigned Greatcare patients to herself and 

7 licensed Greatcare employees to conduct home health visits, 

a defendant knew that neither she nor these other licensed 

9 employees conducted the majority of those visits. As defendant 

10 knew, some of these visits were not conducted by anyone, while 

ll others were conducted, at defendant's instruction, by two 

12 individuals whom defendant hired to make home visits to Medicare 

13 beneficiaries knowing that the individuals :Lacked nursing or 

14 physical therapy licenses in California. Defendant and her 

15 licensed co~schemers at Greatcare signed skilled nursing notes 

16 falsely claiming they had visited patients they in fact had not 

17 visited. These false statements made by defendant and other 

18 Greatcare employees at defendant's instruction were material, in 

19 that Medicare required Greatcare to maintain accurate and 

20 detailed skilled nursing notes to support the services for which 

21 Greatcare billed Medicare. 

22 At defendant's directio:n, Greatcare submitted claims to 

23 Medicare for beneficiaries who were recruited by the payme:nt of 

24 illegal kickbacks and who did not medically need the services 

25 billed and often did not receive them or received them from 

26 unlicensed individuals. Defendant knowingly and wi1lfully 

27 submitted these fraudulent claims in order to deceive Medicare 

28 and to obtai:n payments of Medicare money to which she was not 

13 
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1 entitled. These fraudulent claims were material in that they 

2 induced Medicare to reimburse Greatcare for services it had 

3 allegedly provided. 

4 Exeqution of the Scileme tg Defraud 

5 On or about March 1, 2011, in furtherance of the scheme to 

6 defraud Medicare, defendant knowingly, willfully, and with the 

7 intent to defraud Medicare caused Greatcare.to submit a false 

a claim to Medicare for skilled nursing.services purportedly 

9 provided by Greatcare to Medicare beneficiary S.H. between 

10 November 24, 2010, and December 3, 2010. At the time, defendant 

11 knew that beneficiary S.H. did not medically need home health 

·12· services. Defendant caused Greatcare to bill the claim for S.H. 

13 to Medicare using·a diagnosis (acute bronchitis) that was 

14 di~ferent from and more severe than the diagnosis indicated on 

15 the referring doctor's order for home health (dehydration). 

16 Defendant paid a total of· $600 in illegal kickbacks to 

17 beneficiary S.H. to induce S.H. to sign up for multiple episodes 

lB of care with Greatcare, and had paid $300 in illegal kickbacks to 

19 an employee of the referring doctor in exchange for the doctor's 

20 referral of S.H. to Greatcare. Medicare paid Greatcare $2,700.60 

21 on this false claim. 

22 Qbstruction 

23 In or around March 2011, defendant assisted a doctor to whom 

24 she had previously paid illegal kickbacks in creating patient 

25 files for Medicare beneficiaries the doctor had referred to 

26 Greatcare. Defendant provided the doctor with Greatcare billing 

27 data and false information about the patients' medical conditions 

28 to help the doctor fabricate patient files that would support 

14 
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1 Greatcare•s claims f9r payment. Defendant also instructed at 

2 least two other Greatcare employees to enter beneficiary 

3 information into the files and to obtain signatures from Medicare 

4 beneficiaries for the. files. Defendant provided the Greatcare 

5 billing data and falsified information knowing and intending for 

6 it to be used to create fraudulent patient files purportedly 

7 supporting patient referrals made to Greatcare that would then be 

8 submitted to federal agents. 

9 ~oss to Medicare 

10 The loss to Medicare from defendant's scheme was 

11 approximately $5,144,277.54. 

12 SENTENCING FACTORS 

13 16. Defendant understands that in determining defendant's 

14 sentence the Court is required to consider the factors set forth 

15 in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a} (1)-(7), including the kinds of sentence 

16 and sentencing range established under the Sentencing Guidelines. 

17 Defendant understands that the Sentencing Guidelines are advisory 

18 only, that defendant cannot have any expectation of receiving a 

19 sentence within the Sentencing Guidelines range, an~ that after 

20 considering the Sentencing Guidelines and the other§ 3553(a) 

21 factors, the Court will be free to exercise its discretion to 

22 impose any sentence it finds appropriate up to the maximum set by 

23 statute for the crime of conviction. 

24 17. Defendant and the USAO agree to the following 

25 applicable Sentencing Guidelinea'faotors: 

26 Base Offense Level 6 ' [U.s.s.G. § 2Bl.l(a) (l)] 
, 

27 Loss Amount Between 
$2.5 Million and 

28 $7 Million +18 
• 

[U.S.S.G. § 2Bl.l(b) (1) (J)] 

15 
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l Obstruction +2 [D.S.S.G. § 3Cl.1] 

2 Defendant and the USAO reserve the right to argue that addit.ional 

3 specific offense characteristics, adjustments, and departures 

4 under the Sentencing Guidelines are appropriate. Specifically, 

5 the government reserves the right to argue for enhancements for 

6 aggravated role under D.s.s.G. § 3Bl.1(aJ and abuse of a position 

7 of trust under u.s.s.G. § 3C1.1. 

a 18. Defendant understands that there is no agreement as to 

9 defendant's criminal history or criminal history category. 

10 19. Defendant and the USAO reserve the right to argue for a 

11 sentence outside the sentencing range established by the 

12 Sentencing Guidelines based on the factors set forth in 18 u.s.c. 
13 § 3553 (a) (1), (a) (2), (a) (3), (a) (6), and (a) (7). 

14 WAIYER OF CQNSTITQTIQl!'Ati RJ;GHTS 

15 20. Defendant understands that by pleading guilty, 

16 defendant gives up the following rights: 

17 a) The right to persist in a plea of not guilty. 

18 b) The right to a speedy and public trial by jury. 

19 c) The right to the assistance of an attorney at trial, 

20 including the right to have the Court appoint an attorney to 

21 represent defendant at trial. Defendant understands, however, 

22 that, despite defendant's guilty plea, defendant retains the 

23 right to be represented by an attorney -- and, if necessary, to 

24 have the Court appoint an attorney if defendant cannot afford one 

25 -- at every other stage of the proceeding. 

26 d) The right to be presumed innocent and to have the 

27 burden of proof placed on the government to prove defendant 

28 guilty beyond a reasonable doubt. 

16 
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1 e) The right to confront and cross-examine witnesses 

2 against defendant. 

3 f} The right to testify on defendant's own behalf and 

4 present evidence in opposition to the charges, including calling 

5 witnesses and sUbpoenaing those witnesses to testify. 

6 g) The right not to be compelled to testify, and, if 

7 defendant chose not to testify or present evidence, to have that 

s choice not be used against defendant. 

9 h} Any and all rights to pursue any affirmative 

10 defenses, Fourth Amendment or Fifth Amendment claims, and other 

11 pretrial· motions that have been filed or could be filed. 

12 WAIVER OF APPEAL OF CQNVICTION 

13 21. Defendant under~tands that, with the exception of an 

14 appeal based on a claim that defendant's guilty plea were 

15 involuntary, by pleading guilty defendant is waiving and giving 

16 up any right to appeal defendant's conviction on the offense to 

17 which defendant is pleading guilty. 

18 LIMITEPMYl'.YAL WAIVER_QFAI?PEAL OF SENIENCE 

19 22. Defendant agrees that, provided the .court imposes a 

20 total term of imprisonment on all counts of conviction of no more 

21 than 108 months, defendant gives up the right to appeal all of 

22 the following: (a) the procedures and calculations used to 

23 determine and impose any portion of the sentence; (b) the term of 

24 imprisonment imposed by the Court; (c) the fine imposed by the 

25 court, provided it is within the statutory maximum; (d) the 

26 amount and terms of any restitution order, provided it requires 

27 payment of no more than $5,144,277.54; (e) the te:rm of probation. 

28 or supervised release imposed by the Court, provided it is within 

17 
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l the statutory maximum; and (f) any of the following conditions of 

2 probation or supervised release imposed by the Court: the 

3 standard conditions set forth in General Orders 3·1s, Ol-05, 

4 and/or 05-02 of this court; the drug testing conditions mandated 

5 by 18 u.s;c. §§ 3563(a} (5) and 3583(d)1 and the alcohol and drug 

G use conditions authorized by 18 u.s.c. § 3563(b) (7). 

7 23. The USAO agrees that, provided (a) all portions of the 

a sentence are at or below the statutory maximum specified above 

9 and (b} the court imposes a term of imprisonment of no less than 

10 87 months, the USAO gives up its right to appeal any portion of 

11 the sentence, with the exception that the USAO reserves the right 

12 to appeal.the amount of restitution ordered if that amount is 

13 less than $5,144,277.54. 

14 RESULT OF WITHDRAWAL OF GUILTY PL!ilA 

15 24. Defendant agrees that if, after entering a guilty plea 

16 pursuant to this agreement, defendant seeks to withdraw and 

17 succeeds in withdrawing defendant's guilty plea.on any basis 

18 other than a claim and finding that entry into this plea 

19 agreement was involuntary, then (a) the USAO will be relieved of 

20 all of its obligations under this agreement, including in 

21 particular its obligations regarding the use of Cooperation 

22 Information; (bl in any investigation, criminal prosecution, or 

23 civil,· administrative, or regulatory action, defendant agrees 

24 that any Cooperation Information and any evidence derived from 

25 any Cooperation Information shall be admissible against 

26 defendant, and defendant will not assert,.and hereby waives and 

27 gives up, any claim under the United States Constitution, any 

28 statute, or any federal rule, that any Cooperation Information or 

18 
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l any evidence derived from any.Cooperation Information should be 

2 suppressed or is inadmissible 

3 EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT 

4 25. This agreement is effective upon signature and 

s execution of all required certifications by defendant, 

6 defendant's counsel, and an AssiSti!Ult United States Attorney. 

7 BREACH OF AGREEMENT 

s 26. Defendant agrees that if defendant, at any time after 

9 the signature of this agreement and execution of all required 

10 certifications by defendant, defendant's counsel, and an 

11 Assistant united States Attorney, knowingly violates or fails to 

12 perform any of defendant's obligations under this agreement ("a 

13 breach"), the USAO may declare this agreement breached. For 

14 example, if defendant. knowingly, in an interview, before a grand 

15 jury, or at trial, falsely accuses another person of criminal 

16 conduct or falsely minimizes defendant's own role, or the role of 

17 another, in criminal conduct, defendant will have breached this 

18 agreement. All of defendant's obligations are material, a single 

19 breach of this agreement is sufficient for the USAO to declare a 

20 breach, and defendant shall not be deemed to have cured a breach 

21 without the express agreement of the USAO in writing. If the 

22 USAO declares this agreement breached, and the Court finds such a 

23 breach to have occurred, then: 

24 (a) Zf defendant has previously entered a guilty plea 

25 pursuant to this agreement, defendant will not be able to 

26 withdraw the guilty plea. 

27 (b) The USAO will be relieved of all its obligations 

28 under this agreement; in particular, the USAO: (i) will no longer 

19 
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l be bound by any agreements concerning sentencing and will be free 

2 to seek any sen~ence up to the statutory maximum for the crime to 

3 which defendant has pleaded guilty; and (ii) will no longer be 

4 bound by any agreement regarding the use of Cooperation 

5 Information and will be free to use any Cooperation Information 

6 in any way in any investigation, criminal prosecution, or civil, 

7 administrative, or regulatory action. 

a c) The USAO will be free to criminally prosecute 

9 defendant for false statement, obstruction of justice, and 

-10 perjury based on any knowingly false or misleading statement by 

ll defendant. 

12 d) In any investigation, criminal prosecution, or 

13 civil, administrative, or regulatory action: (i) defendant will 

14 not assert, and hereby waives and gives up, any claim that any 

15 cooperation Info;rmation was obta_ined in violation of the Fifth 

16 Amendment privilege against compelled self-incrimination; and 

17 (ii) defendant agrees that any Cooperation Information and any 

18 Plea Information, as well as any evidence derived from any 

19 Cooperation Information or any Plea Information, shall be 

20 admissible against defendant, and defendant will not assert, and 

21 hereby waives and gives up, any claim under the united states 

22 Constitution, any statute, Rule 410 of the Federal Rules of 

23 Evidence, Rule ll(f) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, 

24 or any other federal rule, that any Cooperation Information, any 

25 Plea Information, or any evidence derived from any Cooperation 

26 Information or any Plea Information should be suppressed or is 

27 inadmissible. 

28 
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l COURT AND PROBATION OFFICE NOT PARTIES 

2 27. Defendant understands that the court and the United 

3 States Probation Office are not parties to this agreement and 

4 need not accept any of the USAO's sentencing recommendations or 

5 the parties' agreements to .facts or sentencing factors. 

6 28. Defendant understands that both defendant and the USAO 

7 are free to1 {a) supplement the facts by supplying relevant 

a information to the united States Probation Office and the Court, 

9 (b) correct any and all factual misstatements relating to the 

10 Court's Sentencing Guidelines calculations, and C) argue on 

11 appea~ and collateral review that the Court's Sentencing 

12 Guidelines calculations are not error, although each party agrees 

13 to maintain its view that the calculations in paragraph 17 are 

14 i::K:>nsistent with the facts of this case.· While this paragraph 

15 permits both the USAO and defendant to submit full and complete 

16 factual information to the United States Probation Office and.the 

17 Court, even if that factual information may be viewed as 

18 inconsistent with the .facts agreed to in this agreement, this 

19 paragraph does not affect defendant's and the USAO's obligations 

20 not to contest the facts agreed to in this agreement. 

21 29. Defendant understands that even if the Court ignores 

22 any·sentencing recommendation, finds facts or reaches conclusions 

23 different from those agreed to, and/or imposes any sentence up to 

24 the maximum established by statute, defendant cannot, ~or that 

25 reason, withdraw defendant's guilty plea, and defendant will 

26 remain bound to fulfill all defendant's obligations under this 

27 agreement. Defendant understands that no one -- not the 

2a prosecutor, defendant's attorney, or the court -- can make a 

21 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

binding prediction or promise regarding the sentence defendant 

will receive, except that it will be within the statutory 

maximum. 

NO APDITIONJ\L AGREEMENTS 

5 30. Defendant understands that, except as set forth herein, 

6 there are no promises, understandings, or agreements between the 

7 USAO and defendant or defendant's attorney, and that no 

a additional promise, understanding, or agreement may be entered 

9 into unless in a writing signed by all parties or on the record 

10 in court. 

11 PLEA AGREEMENT J?ART OF THE GUILTY PLEA HEARING 

12 31. The parties agree that this agreement will be 

13 considered part of the record of defendant's guilty plea hearing 

14 as if the entire agreement had been read into the record of the 

15· proceeding. 

16 AGREED AND ACCEPTED 

17 UNITED STATES ATTORNEY'S OFFICE 
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

18 
ANIIRE BIROTTE JR. 

19 United tates Attorney 

20 

21 
A. WILLIJ\MS 

22 ant united States Attorney 

23 

24 

25 

26 

2 7 ~4i'i?.f'ER 

28 
Attorney for Defendant 
HEE JUNG MON 

-
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t-i-f o (I rt 
Date 
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1 CERTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT 

2 r have read this_ agreement in its entirety. I have had 

3 enough time to review and consider this agreement, and I have 

4 carefully and thoroughly discussed every part of it with my 

5 attorney. I understand the terms of this agreement, and I 

6· voluntarily·agree to those terms. I have discussed the evidence 

7 with my attorney, and my attorney has advised me of my rights, of 

8 possible pretrial motions that might be filed, of possible 

9 defenses that might be asserted either prior to or at trial, of 

10 the sentencing factors set forth in 18 u.s.c. § 3553(a), of 

11 relevant Sentencing Guidelines provisions, and of the 

12 consequences of entering into this agreement. No promises, 

13 inducements, or representations of any kind have been made to me 

14 other than those contained in this agreement. No one has 

15 threatened.or forced me in any way to enter into this agreement. 

16 I am satisfied with the representation of my attorney in this 

17 matter, and X am pleading guilty because I am guilty of the 

18 charges and wish. to take advantage of the promises set forth in 

19 this agreement, and not for any other reason. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(v/01/11 
Date 
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CERTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT'S ATTORlill 

I am HEE JUNG M'ON's attorney. I have carefully and 

thoroughly discussed every part of this agreement with my client. 

FUrther, I have fully advised my client of her rights, of 

possible pretrial motions that might be filed, of possible 

defenses that might be asserted either prior to or at trial, of 

the sentencing factors set forth in 18 u.s.c. § 3553(a), of 

relevant Sentencing Guidelines provisions, and of the 

consequences of entering into this agreement. To my knowledge: 

no promises, inducements, or representations of any kind have· 

been made to my client other than those contained in this 

agreement; no one has threatened or forced my client in any way 

to enter into this agreement; my client's decision to enter into 

this agreement is an informed and voluntary one; and the factual 

basis set forth in this agreement is sufficient to support my 

to this agreement. 

lSl~AND_;,;R~EW~F~L~I~E~R;_.,-:R:._..,:::_:::.::__;::,.2:_:;:::.::::::.. 
19 Attorney for Defendant 

Date 
IZ-1-1/ 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

HEE JONG MUN 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

CRIMINAL MINUTES -- CHANGE OF PLEA 

Case No. CR 11-01169 DDP Date: January 11, 2012 
============================================================================ 
PRESENT: HONORABLE DEAN D. PREGERSON, JUDGE 

John A. Chambers 
Courtroom Deputy 

Maria Bustillos 
Court Reporter 

Kristen A. Williams 
Asst. U.S. Attorney 

============================================================================ 
U.S.A. vs (Dfts listed below) 

1) HEE JUNG MUN 
present on bond 

PROCEEDINGS: PLEA 

Attorneys for Defendants 

1) Andrew Reed Flier 
present retained 

Court and counsel confer re the plea of Guilty. Defendant moves to plea Guilty to the Information. 
Defendant now enters a plea of Guilty to the Single Count Information. The Court questions the 
defendant regarding the plea of Guilty and finds a factual and legal basis for the plea; waivers of 
constitutional rights are freely, voluntarily and intelligently made; plea is provident; plea is accepted 
and entered. 

The Court refers the defendant to the Probation Office for the preparation of a presentence report and 
continues the matter to October 1, 2012 at 1 :30 p.m., for sentencing. The Court vacates the court 
and/or jury trial date. 

Counsel are notified that Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32(b)(6)(B) requires the parties to 
notify the Probation Officer, and each other, of any objections to the Presentence Report 
within fourteen (14) days of receipt. Alternatively, the Court will permit counsel to file such 
objections no later than twenty-one (21) days before Sentencing. The Court construes 
"objections" to include departure arguments. Requests for continuances shall be filed no 
later than twenty-one (21) days before Sentencing. Strict compliance with the above is 
mandatory because untimely filings impede the abilities of the Probation Office and of the 
Court to prepare for Sentencing. Failure to meet these deadlines is grounds for sanctions. 

cc: P.O.& P.S.A.L.A. 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA vs. 

Defendant HEE JUNG MUN 

akas: Angela Mun: Moniker: Angela 

United States District Court 
Central District of California 

Docket No. CR 11-01169 DDP 

Social Security 
No. J_ J_ J_ J_ 
(Last 4 digits) 

JUDGMENT AND PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER 

MONTH DAY YEAR 

In the presence of the attorney for the government, the defendant appeared in person ...__,,J"'u,_,lv __ __,2,,,,8'--~2,,,0....,1""'4_. 

COUNSEL ID Andrew Reed Flier, retained. 
(Name of Counsel) 

I gGUIL TY, and the court being satisfied that there is a factual basis for D NOLO D 
he plea. CONTENDERE NOT GUil TY 

---~ 

PLEA 

_F_IN_D_l_N_G~I ~here being a finding/verdict I GUil TY, defendant has been convicted as charged of the offense(s) of: 

18 U.S.C. §1347: Health Care Fraud as charged in the Single Count Information. 

JUDGMENT The Court asked whether there was any reason why judgment should not be pronounced. Because no sufficient 
AND PROB/ cause to the contrary was shown, or appeared to the Court, the Court adjudged the defendant guilty as charged and 

COMM convicted and ordered that: Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the 
ORDER defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of: 

-~~~~ 

Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant, 
Hee Jung Mun, is hereby committed on the Single Count Information to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons 
to be imprisoned for a term of 57 months. 

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be placed on supervised release for a term of 
three years under the following terms and conditions: 

1. The defendant shall comply with the rules and regulations of the U.S. Probation Office, 
General Order 05-02, and General Order 01-05, including the three special conditions 
delineated in General Order 01-05; 

2. During the period of community supervision the defendant shall pay the special assessment 
and restitution in accordance with this judgment's orders pertaining to such payment; 

3. The defendant shall not be employed in any position that requires licensing and/or certification 
by any local, state or federal agency without prior approval of the Probation Officer; 

4. The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of a DNA sample from the defendant; and 

CR-104 (03-11) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMl\rlITl\'IENT ORDER Page 1 of 5 



Case 2:11-cr-01169-DD~ Document 36 Filed 07/30/14 Pagl~ of 5 Page ID #:179 

USA vs. HEE JUNG MUN Docket No.: CR 11-01169 DDP 

5. The defendant shall apply all monies received from income tax refunds, lottery winnings, 
inheritance, judgements and any anticipated or unexpected financial gains to the outstanding 
court-ordered financial obligation. 

The drug testing condition mandated by statute is suspended based on the Court's determination that 
the defendant poses a low risk of future substance abuse. 

RESTITUTION: It is ordered that the defendant shall pay restitution pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3663 (A). 
Defendant shall pay restitution in the total amount of$ 5, 144,277.54 to victims as set forth in a separate 
victim list prepared by the probation office which this Court adopts and which reflects the Court's 
determination of the amount of restitution due to each victim. The victim list, which shall be forwarded to the 
fiscal section of the clerk's office, shall remain confidential to protect the privacy interests of the victims. 

Restitution shall be due during the period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per 
quarter, and pursuant to the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. If any amount of 
the restitution remains unpaid after release from custody, nominal monthly payments of at least 10% of 
defendant's gross monthly income, but not less than $100, whichever is greater, during the period of 
supervised release and shall begin 30 days after the commencement of supervision. Nominal restitution 
payments are ordered as the court finds that the defendant's economic circumstances do not allow for either 
immediate or future payment of the amount ordered. 

The amount of restitution ordered shall be paid as set forth in the confidential victim list. 

The defendant shall be held jointly and severally liable with the co-participants Ji Hae Kim, docket 
number CR 11-01082-DDP; Seonweon Kim, docket number CR 12-00009-DDP; Jung Sook Lee, docket 
number CR 12-00015-DDP; Hwa Ja Kim, docket number CR 12-00059-DDP; Whan Sil Kim, docket number 
CR 12-00572-DDP; Yeong Ja Lee, docket number CR 12-397-DDP; and Sang Whan Ahn, docket number 
CR 12-588-DDP, to the extent and for the amount that each is determined liable for the same victim losses. 
The victim's recovery is limited to the amount of its loss and the defendant's liability for restitution ceases if 
and when the victim receives full restitution. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f)(3)(A), interest on the restitution ordered is waived because the 
defendant does not have the ability to pay interest. Payments may be subject to penalties for default and 
delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(g). 

The defendant shall comply with General Order No. 01-05. 

FINE: All fines are waived as it is found that the defendant does not have the ability to pay a fine in addition 
to restitution. 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT: It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special 
assessment of $100, which is due immediately. Any unpaid balance shall be due during the 
period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per quarter, and pursuant to the 
Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. 

SENTENCING FACTORS: The sentence is based upon the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553, including 
the applicable sentencing range set forth in the guidelines. 

The Court RECOMMENDS a BOP facility as close to the Southern California vicinity as possible. 
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IT IS ORDERED that the defendant shall self-surrender to the institution designated by the BOP on or 
before 12 noon, on September 29, 2014 and, on the absence of such designation, the defendant shall 
report on or before the same date and time, to the United States Marshal at 255 East Temple Street, 
Los Angeles, California, 90012. 

In addition to the special conditions of supervision imposed above, it is hereby ordered that the Standard Conditions of Probation and 
Supervised Release within this judgment be imposed. The Court may change the conditions of supervision, reduce or extend the period of 
supervision, and al any time during the supervision period or within the maximun1 period perntltted by law, may issue a warrant and revoke 
supervision for a violation occurring during the supervision period. 

July 30, 2014 
Date United States District Judge 

It is ordered that the Clerk deliver a copy of this Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order to the U.S. Marshal or other qualified officer. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

July 30, 2014 
Filed Date 

By John A. Chambers 

Deputy Clerk 

The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court (set forth below). 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROUATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

While the defendant is on probation or supervised release pursuanl to this judgment: 

1. The defendanl shall nol commit another Federal, state or local crime; 
2. the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the written 

pennission of the court or probation officer; 
3. the defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the 

court or probation officer and shall subn1it a truthful and complete 
written report within the first five days of each 1nonth; 

4. the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation 
officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer; 

5. the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other 
family responsibilities; 

6. the defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupalion unless 
excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other 
acceptable reasons; 

7. the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least 10 days prior 
to any change in residence or cmploymenl; 

8. the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not 
purchase, possess, use, distribute, or ad1ninistcr any narcotic or other 
controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, 
except as prescribed by a physician; 

9. the defendant shall not frequenl places where controlled substances 
are illegally sold, used, distributed or ad1ninistered; 

10. the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal 
activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted of a felony 
unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer; 

11. the defendant shall pern1it a probation officer to visit him or her at any 
ti1ne at hotne or elsewhere and shall pcnnit confiscation of any 
contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer; 

12. the defendant sha1l notify the probation officer within 72 hours of 
being arrested or questioned by a law enforce1nent officer; 

13. the defendant shall not enter into any agree1nent to act as an informer 
or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the pern1ission 
of the court; 

14. as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third 
pat1ics of risks that 1nay be occasioned by the defendant's cri111inal 
record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the 
probation officer to make such notifications and to conform the 
defendant's con1pliance \Vith such notification requirc111ent; 

15. the defendant shall, upon release fron1 any period of custody, report 
to the probation officer within 72 hours; 

16. and, for felony cases only: not possess a firearm, destructive device, 
or any other dangerous weapon. 

D The defendant will also comply with the following special conditions pursuant to General Order 01-05 (set forth below). 
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STATUTORY PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF FINANCIAL SANCTIONS 

The defendant shall pay interest on a fine or restitution of 1nore than $2,500, unless the court waives interest or unless the fine or 
restitution is paid in full before the fifteenth (15'") day after the date of the judgment pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(£)(1). Payments may be subject 
to penalties for default and delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(g). Interest and penalties pertaining to restitution , however, are not 
applicable for offenses completed prior to April 24, 1996. 

If all or any portion of a fine or restitution ·ordered remains unpaid after the tennination of supervision, the defendant shall pay the 
balance as directed by the United States Attorney's Office. 18 U.S.C. §3613. 

The defendant shall notify tl1e United States Attorney within thirty (30) days of any change in the defendant's mailing address or 
residence until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments are paid in full. 18 U.S.C. §3612(b)(1)(F). 

The defendant shall notify the Court through the Probation Office, and notify the United States Attorney of any material change in the 
defendant's economic circumstances that might affect the defendant's ability to pay a fine or restitution, as required by 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). The 
Court 1nay also accept such notification fro1n the govern1nent or the victim, and may, on its own 1notion or that of a party or the victim, adjust 
the manner of payment of a fine or restitution-pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3664(k). See also 18 U.S.C. §3572(d)(3) and for probation 18 U.S.C. 
§3563(a)(7). 

Payments shall be applied in the following order: 

1. Special assessments pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3013; 
2. Restitution, in this sequence: 

3. Fine; 

Private victims (individual and corporate), 
Providers of compensation to private victitns, 
The United States as victim; 

4. Community restitution, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3663(c); and 
5. Other penalties and costs. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE 

As directed by the Probation Officer, the defendant shall provide to the Probation Officer: (1) a signed release authorizing credit report 
inquiries; (2) federal and state income tax returns or a signed release authorizing their disclosure and (3) an accurate financial statement, with 
supporting docun1entation as to all assets, inco1nc and expenses of the defendant. In addition, the defendant shall not apply for any loan or open 
any line of credit without prior approval of the Probation Officer. 

The defendant shall maintain one personal checking account. All of defendant's income, "111onetary gains," or other pccuniruy proceeds 
shalJ be deposited into this account, which shall be used for payment of all personal expenses. Records of all other bank accounts, including any 
business accounts, shall be disclosed to the Probation Officer upon request. 

The defendant shall not transfer, sell, give away, or otherwise convey any asset with a fair 1narket value in excess of $500 without 
approval of the Probation Officer until all financial obligations in1poscd by the Court have been satisfied in fuil. 

These conditions are in addition to any other conditions hnposed by this judgment. 

RETURN 

I have executed the within Judg1nent and Commihnent as follows: 
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Defendant delivered on 

Defendant noted on appeal on 

Defendant released on 

Mandate issued on 

Defendant's appeal determined on 

Defendant delivered on 

at 

Docket No.: CR11-01169 DDP 

to 

the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons, with a certified copy of the within Judgment and Commitment. 

United States Marshal 

Date Deputy Marshal 

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby attest and certify this dale that the foregoing document is a full, true and correct copy of the original on file in my office, and in 1ny 
legal custody. · 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

By 

Filed Date Deputy Clerk 

FOR U.S. PROBATION OFFICE USE ONLY 

Upon a finding of violation of probation or supervised release, I understand that the court may (1) revoke supervision, (2) extend the term of 
supervision, and/or (3) modify the conditions of supervision. 

These conditions have been read to n1e. I fully understand the conditions and have been provided a copy of them. 

(Signed)----------------­
Defendanl 

U. S. Probation Officer/Designated Witness 

Date 

Date 
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BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

HEE JUNG MUN 
aka HEE MUN 
1746 W. 169th Place, Unit A 
Gardena, CA 90247 

Case No. 2016-423 

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER 

[Gov. Code, § 11520] 

Registered Nurse License No. 590575 

RESPONDENT 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. On or about October 22, 2015, Complainant Louise R. Bailey, M.Ed.,RN, in her 

·official capacity as the Executive. Officer of the Board of Registered Nursing, Department of 

Consumer Affairs, filed Accusation No. 2016-423 against Hee Jung M1m, aka Hee Mun 

(Respondent) before the Board of Registered Nursing. (Accusation attached as Exhibit A.) 

2. On or about October 31, 2001, the Board of Registered Nursing (Board) issued 

Registered Nurse License No. 590575 to_ Respondent. The Registered Nurse License expired on 

November 30, 2015, and has not been renewed. 

3. On or about October 22,"2015, Respondent was served by Certified and First Class 

Mail copies of the Accusation No. 2016-423, Statement to Respondent, Notice of Defense, 

Request for Discovery, and Government Code sections 11507.5, 11507.6, and 11507.7 to 

Respondent's address ofrecord which, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 136 

1 
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( ( 

1 and/Title 16, California Code of Regulation, section 1409 .1, is required to be reported and 

2 maintained with the Board, was and is: 

3 1746 W. 169th Place, Unit A 

4 Gardena, CA 90247. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

4. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the provisions of 

Government Code section 11505, subdivision (c) and/or Business & Professions Code section 

124. 

5. On or about Novem]?er 5, 2015, the Board of Registered Nursing received the 

unsigned Domestic Return Receipt for the. Accusation served by Certified Mail. A search of 

LexisN exis confirms that to date, the address ofrecord on file with the Board remains associated 

with Respondent as her primary address. 

6. Business and Professions Code section 2764 states: 

The lapsing or suspension of a license by operation of law or by order or decision of 

the board or a court of law, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licentiate shall not deprive 

the board of jurisdiction to proceed with an investigation-of or action or disciplinary proceeding 

against such license, or to render. a decision suspending or revoking such license. 

7. Government Code section 11506 states, in pertinent part: 

18 . ( c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent files a 

19 notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all parts of the Accusation 

20 not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall constitute a waiver of respondent's 

21 right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion may nevertheless grant a hearing. · 

22 8. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service of the 

23 Accusation upon her, and therefore waived her right to a hearing on the merits of Accusation No. 

24 2016-423. 

25 9. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part: 

26 (a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense· or to appear at the hearing, the 

27 agency may take action based upon the respondents express admissions or upon other evidence 

28 and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to respondent. 

2 

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER (2016-423) 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

_27 

28 

( 

10. Pursuant to its authority under Gov~rnment Code section 11520, the Board, after 

having reviewed the proof of service dated October 22, 2015, signed by Christian Espiritu, finds 

Respondent is in default. The Board will talce action without further hearing and, based on 

Accusation No. 2016-423 and the documents contained in Default Decision Investigatory 

Evidence Packet in this matter which includes: 

Exhibit 1: 

Exhibit 2: 

Exhibit 3: 

Exhibit 4: 

Pleadings offered for jurisdictional purposes; Accusation Case No. 2016-

423, Statement to Respondent, Notice of Defense (two blank copies), 

Request for Discovery and Discovery Statutes (Government Code sections 

11507.5, 11507 .. 6 and 11507.7), proof of service; and if applicable, mail 

receip~ or copy ofreturned mail envelopes; 

License History Certification for Hee Jung Mun, aka Hee Mun, Registered 

Nurse License No. 590575; 

Court and Arrest Records; 

List of possible addresses retrieved from LexisNexis. 

The Board finds that the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 2016-423 are separately and 

severally true and correct by clear and convincing evidence. 

DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

' 
1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Hee Jung Mun, aka Hee Mun has 

subjected her following license(s) to discipline: 

a, Registered Nurse License No. 590575 

2. -The agency ffas jlirisaiction f6 adjudicate this-CaStfbyaefault: -

3. The Board ofRegistered Nursing is authorized to revoke Respondent's license(s) 

based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation, which ·are supported by the 

evidence contained in the Default Decision Investigatory Evidence Packet in this case. 

a. Violation- of Business and Professions Code section 276l(a) - Unprofessional 

Conduct. 
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24 
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b. Violation of Business and Professions Code section 276l(f) - Conviction 

substantially related to the qualifications, functions and duties of a 

registered nurse. 

c. Violation of Business and Professions Code section 2765 - A plea or verdict of 

guilty or a conviction following a plea of no lo contendere made to a 

charge substantially related to the qualifications, functions and duties of a 

registered nurse is.deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this 

article. 

d. Violation of Business and Professions Code section 810(a)(l): Knowingly 

present or cause to be presented any false or fraudulent claim for the 

payment of a loss under a contract of insurance. 

e. Violation of Business and Professions Code section 810(a)(2) - Knowingly 

prepare, make, or subscribe any writing, with intent to present or use the 

same, or to allow it to be presented or used in support of any false or 

fraudulent claim. 

f. Violation of Business and Professions Code section 810(b)- Engage in any 

conduct prohibited under Section 1871.4 of the Insurance Code or Section 

549 or 550 of the Penal ·code. 

g. Violation of 810(c) - Conviction of any felony involving Medi-Cal fraud 

committ~d by the licensee or certificate holder in conjunction with the 

··Medi-CaJ-progrrun. - ---

4 
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1 ORDER 

2 IT IS SO ORDERED that Registered Nurse License No. 590575, heretofore issued to 

3 Respondent Hee Jung Mun, aka Hee Mun, is revoked. 

4 Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a 

5 written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within 

6 seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may 

7 

8 

9 

10. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute. 

This Decision shall become effective on __clc_VJ..:.·fArL~li\_!....;?.,=..:,~1-' =W::.....:I..:., ___ _ 

It is so ORDERED fe\xv(j V1 ,/i.61 b 

j 

Attachment: 

Exhibit A: Accusation No. 2016-423 

21 - - -- ---

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
LINDA K. SCHNEIPER 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
THOMAS L. RINALDI 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 206911 

300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-2542 
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 

Attorneys for Complainant 
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BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF REGISTERED NURSING 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

IO 
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12 

13 
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In the Matter of the Accusation Against: 

HEE JUNG MUN aka HEE MUN 
1746 W. 169th Place, Unit A 
Gardena, CA 9024 7 

14 Registered Nurse License No. 590575 

15 Respondent. 

16 

17 Complainant alleges: 

Case No. W(~-L{'L°'.) 
ACCUSATION 

18 PARTIES 

19 I. Louise R. Bailey, M.Ed., RN (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her 

20 official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Registered Nursing (Board), Department 

21 of Consumer Affairs.· 

22 · · 2. On or about October 31, 2001, the Board issued Registered Nurse License No. 

23 590575 to Hee Jung Mun also known as Hee·Mun (Respondent). The Registered Nurse License 

24 was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on 

25. November 30, 2015, unless renewed. 

26 I I I 

27 I I I 

28 I I I 

1 
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JURISDICTION 1 

2 3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following laws. 

3 All section references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise 

4 indicated. 

5 4. Section 2750 of the Business and Professions Code (Code) provides, in pertinent part, 

6 that the Board may discipline any licensee, including a licensee holding a temporary or an inactive 

7 license, for any reason provided in Article 3 (comm~ncing with section 2750) of the Nursing 

8 Practice Act. 

9 5. Section 2764 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the expiration ofa license 

1 o shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary proceeding against the 

11 licensee or to render a decision imposing discipline on the license. Under section 2811, 

12 subdivision (b) of the Code, the Board may renew an expired license at any time within eight years 

13 after the expiration. 

14 STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS 
' 

15 6. Section 2761 of the Code states,·in pertinent part: 

16 "The board may take disciplinary action against a certified or licensed nurse or deny an 

17 application for a certificate or license for any of the following: 

18 "(a) Unprofessional conduct, which includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

19 

20 "(f) Conviction of a felony or of any offense substantially related to the qualifications, 

21 functions, and duties of a registered nurse, in which event the record of the conviction shall be 

22 · conclusive evidence thereof." 

23 7. Section 2765 of the Code states: 

24 "A plea or verdict· of guilty ·or a conviction following a plea of no lo contendere made to a 

25 charge substantially related to the qualifications, functions and duties of a registered nurse is 

26 deemed to be a conviction within the meaning ofthis article. The board may order the license.or 

27 certificate suspended or revoked, or may decline to issue a license or certificate, when the time for 

28 appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order 

2 ( 
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1 granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent 

2 order under the provisions of Section 1203 .4 of the Penal Code allowing such person to withdraw 

3 his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or 

4 dismissing the accusation, information or indictment." 

5 8. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1444, states: 

6 "A conviction or act shall be considered to be substantially related to the qualifications, 

7 functions or duties of a registered nurse if to a substantial degree it evidences the present or 

8 potential unfitness of a registered nurse to practice in a manner consistent with the public health, 

9 safety, or welfare." 

10 9. Section 810 of the Code states: 

' 11 "(a) It shall constitute unprofessional conduct and grounds for disciplinary action, including 

12 suspension or revocation of a license or certificate, for a health care professional to do any of the 

13 following. in connection with his or her professional activities: 

14 (1) Knowingly present or cause to be presented any false or fraudulent 

15 claim for the payment of a loss under a contract of insurance. 

16 (2) · Knowingly prepare, make, or subscribe any writing, with intent to 

17 present or use the same, or to allow it to be presented or used in support of any false 

18 or fraudulent claim. 

19 "(b) It shall constitnte cause for revocation or suspension of a license or certificate for a 

20 health care professional to engage in any conduct prohibited under Section 1871.4 of the Insurance 

21 Code or Section 549 or 550 of the Penal Code. 

22 "( c) (1) It .shall constitute cause for automatic suspension of a license or certificate issued 

23 pursuant to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 1600), Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 

24 2000), Chapter 6.6 (commencing with Section 2900), Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 3000), 

25 or Chapter 9 (connnencing with Section 4000), or pursuant to the Chiropractic Act or the 

26 Osteopathic Act, if a licensee or certificate holder has been convicted of any felony involving fraud 

27 connnitted by the licensee or certificate holder in conjunction with providing benefits covered by 

28 worker's compensation insurance, or has been convicted of any felony involving Medi-Cal fraud 

3 
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1 committed by the licensee or certificate holder in conjunction with the Medi-Cal program, 

2 including the Denti-Cal element of the Medi-Cal program, pursuant to Chapter 7 (commencing 

3 with Section 14000), or Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 14200), of Part 3 of Division 9 of 

4 the Welfure and Institutions Code. The board shall convene a disciplinary hearing to determine 

5 whether or not. the license or certificate shall be suspended, revoked, or some other disposition 

6 shall be considered, including, but not limited to, revocation with the opportunity to petition for 

7 reinstatement; suspension, or other limitations on the license or certificate as the b<;>ard deems 

8 appropriate. " 

9 COST RECOVERY 

10 10. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the 

11 administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of 

12 the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and 

13 enforcement of the case, with failure of the licentiate to comply subjecting the license to not being 

14 renewed or reinstated .. If a case settles, recovery of investigation and enforcement costs may be 

15 included in a stipulated settlement. 

16 FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

17 (Conviction of a Substantially Related Crime) 

18 II. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under sections 2761, subdivision (t) apd 

19 2765, in conjunction with California Code of Regulations, title 16, seCtion 1444, in that 

20 Respondent was convicted of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties 

21 ofa registered nurse, as.follows:· 

22 a. On or about July 28, 2014, after pleading guilty, Respondent was convicted of one 

23 felony count of violating Title 18, United States Code section Code 1347 [health care fraud] in the 

24 criminal proceeding entitled United States of America v. Hee Jung Mun (United States District 

25 Court, Central District of California, 2010, Case No. 2:01 lCR-01169). The court ordered 

26 Respondent to serve 57 months in federal prison and ordered her to pay restitution in the amount 

27 of$5,144,277.54. 

28 I I I 
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I b. 

( 
( ) 

( 

I) 

The circumstances surrounding the conviction are that in or about May 2008 through 

2 March 2011, Respondent was the owner and operator of a home health agency called Greatcare 

3 Home Health Inc. (Greatcare) that was currently enrolled as a provider with Medicare1
• During 

4 this time, Respondent engaged in a scheme to defraud Medicare by submitting claims for health 

5 care services that (!) involved kickbacks paid to doctors and marketers in exchange for their 

6 referrals of Medicare patients to Greatcare; (2) involved kickbacks paid to patients to induce them 

7 to sign up for health services; (3) billed Medicare for patients who were not homebound or 

8 otherwise did not qualify for home health services; ( 4) were provided by unlicensed individuals; (5) 

9 · involved up coding patient diagnoses for higher Medicare reimbursement; aod ( 6) created false 

1 o medical records to support false claims submitted to Medicare. The loss to Medicare resulting 

11 from Respondent's fraudulent conduct was approximately $5,144,277.54. 

12 SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

13 (False or Fraudulent Claims) 

14 12. Respondent has subjected her licenses to discipline pursuant to Code sections 2761, 

15 subdivision (a), aod/or 810, subdivisions (a)(l) aod (a)(2), on the grounds of unprofessional 

16 conduct in that Respondent knowingly prepared aod presented false or fraudulent claims for 

17 payment. Complainant refers to, and by this reference incorporates, the allegations set forth above 

18 in paragraph 11, as though set forth fully. 

19 THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

20 (Insurance Fraud) 

21 13. Respondent has subjected her licenses to discipline pursuant to Code sections 2761, 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

subdivision (a), aod/or 810, subdivision (b), on the grounds of unprofessional conduct in that 

Respondent solicited others to make false claims as well as herself for the purpose of obtaining 

compensation. Complainant refers to, and by this reference incorporates, the allegations set forth 

above in paragraph 11, as though set forth fully. 

1 Medicare is a federal health care benefit program operated by the U.S. Department of 
Health and Humao Services that provides reimbursement for medically necessary services, 
including skilled nnrsing services provided by qualified home health agencies, provided to persons 
age sixty-five years and older and to certain disabled persons. 
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1 FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

2 (Conviction Involving Healthcare Fraud) 

3 14. Respondent has subjected her licenses to discipline pursuant to Code sections 2761, 

4 subdivision (a), and/or 810, subdivision (c), on the grounds of unprofessional conduct iu that 

5 Respondent was convicted ofa crime involviug Medicare fraud. Complainant refers to, and by this 

6 reference incorporates, the allegations set forth above in paragraph 1.1, as though set forth fully. 

7. PRAYER 

8 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests tha_t a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

9 and that following the heariug, the Board issue a decision: 

10 1. Revoking or suspending Registered Nurse License No. 590575, issued to Hee Jung 

11 Mun aka Hee Mun 

12 2. Ordering Hee Jung Mun to pay the Board the reasonable costs of the· investigation and 

13 enforcement ofthis case, pursuant to Code section 125.3; and 

1.4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

3. Takiug such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

24 

25 

LA2015501039 
51911727.doc 

26 ( 

27 

28 

OUISE R. BAILEY, M.ED., RN 
Executive Officer 
Board of Registered Nursing 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 

. Complainant 
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Declaration of Socorro Tongco 
(in Support of Notice of Provider Suspension) 

I, Socorro Tongco, hereby declare and state as follows: 

1. I make this declaration of my own personal knowledge and if called to testify, I could and 
would testify competently to the matters stated herein. 

2. I am employed by the State of California, Department of Industrial Relations 
("Department"), Office of the Director, as a Special Investigator. I have been an investigator 
with the Department since 2006. I make this Declaration in support of the "Notice of Provider 
Suspension - Workers' Compensation" issued by the Acting Administrative Director of the 
Division of Workers' Compensation, attached herein. 

3. As part of my duties as a Special Investigator, I have access to investigative tools and 
internet-based information databases such as Thomson Reuters Clear, and LexisNexis Accurint. 
These database resources provide access to public and non-public records that we use as 
necessary, for purposes of our legal work and representation of the Department in workers' 
compensation cases and in other litigation, to locate individuals, uncover assets, and verify 
identities. 

4. On or about October 18, 2017, I noted the address of record for Hee Jung Mun, with the 
State of California, Department of Consumer Affairs, Board of Registered Nursing as: 1746 W 
169th Place, Unit A Gardena, CA 90247. 

5. On or about October 18, 2017, I ran a search on Hee Jung Mun in the Federal Bureau of 
Prisons, inmate locator online database. The searches provided the following mailing address 
information for Ms. Mun: P.O. Box 3850 Adelanto, CA 92301. 

6. On or about October 18, 2017, I ran a search on Ms. Mun in the Lexis Nexis Accurint 
database. The searches provided the following information: Hee Jung Mun resided at an address 
in Rancho Palos Verdes, CA (I will not state the addresses so as to not reveal Ms. Mun's home 
address). 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing is true and correct. Executed this 18'h day of October, 2017, in Oakland, California. 

Socorro Tongco 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL 
(C.C.P. section 1013(a), 2015.5) 

I am over the age of 18 years and not a party to the entitled action. My business address 

is 1515 Clay Street, 181h Floor, Oakland, California 94612. 

I served the following documents: 

• Notice of Provider Suspension- Workers' Compensation 
• Information in United States of America v. Hee Jung Mun, aka "Angela Mun" 

(Case No. CR-11-01169), United States District Court, Central District of 
California 

• Plea Agreement for Defendant Hee Jung Mun in United States of America v. 
Hee Jung Mun, aka "Angela Mun" (Case No. CR-11-01169), United States 
District Court, Central District of California 

• Criminal Minutes - - Change of Plea in United States of America v. Hee Jung 
Mun, aka ''Angela Mun" (Case No. CR-11-01169), United States District 
Court, Central District of California 

• Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order in United States of America v. 
Hee Jung Mun, aka ''Angela Mun" (Case No. CR-11-01169), United States 
District Court, Central District of California 

• Default Decision and Order - In the Matter of the Accusation Against Hee 
Jung Mun (Case No. 2016-423), Before the Board of Registered Nursing, 
Department of Consumer Affairs, State of California, with accompanying 
Accusation 

• Declaration of Socorro Tongco in Support of Notice of Provider Suspension 

on the following person(s) at the following address( es): 

Hee Jung Mun 
1746 W. 1691h Place, Unit A 
Gardena, CA 90247 

Hee Jung Mun (Inmate Reg. No. 62081-112) 
FCI Victorville Medium II 
Federal Correctional Institution 
P.O. Box 3850 
Adelanto, CA 92301 

Hee Jung Mun 
6433 Seabryn Drive 
Rancho Palos Verdes, CA 90275 

The documents were served by the following means: 

[X] (BY U.S. CERTIFIED MAIL) I enclosed the documents ina sealed envelope or package 
addressed to the person(s) at the address( es) listed above and: 
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[XJ Placed the envelope or package for co llection and mailing, following our ordinary business 
practices. I am readily fami liar with the firm 's practice for collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice, on the same day that correspondence is 
placed for collection and mailing, it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with the 
U.S. Postal Service, in a sealed envelope or package with the postage fully prepaid. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of State of California that the above is 
true and correct. 

Executed on November 3, 2017, at Oakland, California. 

k~k~ 
URSULA JONES 


